
Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 1 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
CRAVEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR SESSION 
MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2011 

8:30 A.M. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
INVOCATION 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVE MINTUES OF AUGUST 1, 2011 
 
REQUEST APPROVAL OF MINUTES CORRECTIONS  
(May 16, 2011, July 18, 2011) 
 
1. TAX RELEASES AND REFUNDS:  Ronnie Antry, Tax Administrator 
 
2. CARTS REQUEST FOR PUBLIC HEARING:  Phyllis Toler, CARTS 
 Director 
 
3. PLANNING DEPARTMENT MATTERS:   
 A. Recommendation of Bid Award for CDBG Replacement Home:    
  Chip Bartlett, Holland Consulting Planners 
 B. Subdivision Recommended for Approval:  Don Baumgardner,   
  Planning Director 
 
4. BUDGET AMENDMENTS:  Rick Hemphill, Finance Director 
 
5. HUMAN RESOURCES REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF 2012 HOLIDAY  
 SCHEDULE:  Joan Harrell, Human Resources Director 
 
6. PAMLICO COUNTY REQUEST FOR RESOLUTION 
 
7. HEALTH DEPARTMENT REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF FEE  
 ADJUSTMENTS:  Scott Harrelson, Health Director 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 2 

 
 
 
 
8. APPOINTMENTS 
 A. Agricultural Advisory Board 
 B. Firemen’s Relief Fund Board of Trustees 
 C. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
 D. Fire Tax Commissioner 
 E. Nursing Home Advisory Committee 
 F. Adult Care Home Advisory Committee 
 
9. EMERGENCY SERVICES REQUEST:  Stanley Kite, Emergency Services 
 Director 
 
10. COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  Jim Hicks 
 
11. COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT:  Harold Blizzard 
 
12. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 
13. CLOSED SESSION 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 3 

 
 

AGENDA 
WATER BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MONDAY, AUGUST 15, 2011 
 

ROLL CALL 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF JULY 5, 2011 
 
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT AND ORDINANCE UPDATE:  Rick Hemphill, 
 Finance Director 
 
2. WATER RATES:  Rick Hemphill, Finance Director 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 4 

 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR CORRECTIONS TO MINUTES 
 

 
May 16, 2011 Minutes 
 
At line #608, insert the following (Insertions are underlined): 
 
“County Manager, Harold Blizzard, presented the proposed budget for FY 2011-2012, 
along with the message which appears as Exhibit “A” to the minutes.” 
 
 
July 18 Minutes 
 
At line #196, insert the following (Insertions are underlined): 
 
“…at a base purchase price of $177,870, plus the cost of equipping it, for a total 
purchase price of $200,000.”  
 
…the borrowing for the purchase, to be financed by First Citizens Bank would take the 
place of debt that is ending. 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 5 

Presenter: Ronnie Antry     
Agenda Item No. 1     
Board Action Required:    Yes    

   
       

 
 

 
 
 

TAX RELEASES AND REFUNDS 
 

Craven County Tax Administrator, Ronnie Antry, will present the routine requests for tax 
releases and refunds contained in Attachment #1 for the Board’s approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve tax releases and refunds 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 6 

      Presenter: Phyllis Toler     
      Agenda Item No. 2     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 
 

CARTS REQUEST FOR PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 

CARTS Director, Phyllis Toler, will be requesting that the Board schedule a public 
hearing for September 6, 2011 at 7:00 p.m., per Attachment #2. 
 

 
 
Board Action:  The Board will be asked to schedule a public hearing 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 7 

      Presenters:  Chip Bartlett, Don Baumgardner   
      Agenda Item No. 3     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT MATTERS 
 

A.  RECOMMENDATION OF BID AWARD FOR CDBG REPLACEMENT  
  HOME 
 

The current structure located at 310 Kennedy Drive is not cost effective to rehab; 
therefore, a bid opening for the replacement of the home (733 sq. ft., 2 Br, 1 Bath) 
was held on July 28th. A public hearing was held on June 6th explaining the 
proposed replacement activities in the James City Target Area.  No County Funds 
are required.  Bids for the replacement were received from eight (8) regional 
contractors: D. Griffin Builders, Billy Earp & Son, United Builders, Holland 
Construction, Clint Blanton Const., Southern Reconstruction, D&B Builders and 
B&B Construction.   

The contractor submitting the lowest responsible bid was as follows: 

733 sq. ft., 2 Bedroom, 1 Bath New Construction D&B Builders $63,500 (Low  
       Bid) 

Board Action: A bid award is needed to D&B Builders for $63,500.00 in order 
to move forward with this grant activity. 

 
B. SUBDIVISON FOR APPROVAL 

 
Planning Director, Don Baumgardner, will present the following subdivision for the 
Board’s approval. 
 
 James R. Miller, Jr. – Final 

 
-Property is owned by James R. Miller, Jr. 
-Property surveyed by Terry Wheeler, PE, PLS 
-Property is located within Twp 5, off of Godette School Rd. (SR 1714) 
-Parcel ID 5-013-064 
-Subdivision contains 1 lot on .855 acres 
-Lot is proposed to be served by community water and individual septic          
systems 
 
Board Action: A vote to approve the subdivision is requested. 

 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 8 

      Presenter: Rick Hemphill     
      Agenda Item No. 4     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 

 

 

 

 

 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 

Finance Director, Rick Hemphill, will present the following budget amendments for the 
Board’s approval. 
 
Amendments: Soil Conservation/Voluntary Ag District – Need to increase 
carryover balance for Voluntary Agriculture District Program by $ 120.  Budget should 
reflect $555 ($250 unspent from FY’ 10; $305 unspent from FY’ 11).  Current FY’12 
budget reflects carryover of $ 435.   
 
   Health/Adult Health Primary Care – Need to set up budget for Adult 
Health Primary Care program approved at the 08/01/11 Board of Commissioner’s 
meeting.  The program will be implemented October 1, 2011 and $141,750 in revenue 
and expenditures will be needed to support the program during this initial abbreviated 
year. 
 
   Health/Risk Reduction Program – The amount awarded for the Risk 
Reduction program was $22,347 less than anticipated.  Need to adjust the budget to 
reflect the actual amount of the grant - $11,678.  
 
   Health/Home Health – During the FY ’12 budget process, $24,855 
was budgeted to be transferred from Home Health to Risk Reduction.  Given the 
reduction in funding to the Risk Reduction program (noted on the above budget 
amendment) an adjustment is needed to remove the transfer from Home Health.    
    
   Volunteer Fire Depts/Rescue Squads – Cost of worker’s 
compensation insurance for FY ’12 increased considerably.  Need to budget an 
additional $1,235 in fire department lines and $3,242 in rescue squad lines to pay the 
VFIS invoice in the amount of $ 71,292.50. 
 
 
  
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendments 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 9 

      Presenter: Joan Harrell     
      Agenda Item No. 5     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 
 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF 2012 HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

 
Attached, for your consideration, is a copy of the proposed 2012 Holiday Schedule for 
Craven County employees (Attachment # 5).  For the year 2012, if approved, twelve 
(12) holidays will be given with no floating holidays being observed.   
 
This schedule is the same as the State of North Carolina’s Holiday Schedule for 2012, 
which is also included in the attachment.  The Board is asked to consider approval of 
the schedule as presented. 
 
 
Board Action:  Approval of 2012 Holiday Schedule requested 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 10 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 6     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 
 
 

PAMLICO COUNTY REQUEST FOR RESOLUTION 
 

Attachment #6 is an adaptation of a resolution which the Pamlico County Board of 
Commissioners expects to approve on August 15.  Craven County’s support in this 
matter has been requested. 

 
 
 

Board Action:  Consider resolution for adoption 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 11 

      Presenter: Scott Harrelson     
      Agenda Item No. 7     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HEALTH DEPARTMENT REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF FEE ADJUSTMENTS 
 

At its meeting of August 8, 2011, the Board of Health recommended the schedule of 
adjustments to fees in the clinics as shown in Attachment #7.  It is required that charges be 
equal to or greater than the rates paid by Medicaid and Medicare in order to receive full 
reimbursement for services.  The attachment shows the current rate for the service, the 
newly instituted Medicaid rate and the proposed rate to use as posted charges. 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  Consider approval of fee adjustments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 12 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 8     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

 
A. AGRICULTURAL ADVISORY (Deferred) 

 
B. FIREMEN’S RELIEF FUND BOARD OF TRUSTEES (Deferred) 

 
C. JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL (New request; was deferred in 

June) 
 

D. FIRE TAX COMMISSIONER (New request due to death) 
 

E. NURSING HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE (Ongoing until filled)) 
 

F. ADULT CARE HOME ADVISORY COMMITTEE (Ongoing until filled) 
 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 13 

 
 
 
 
CURRENT DEFERRED APPOINTMENT(S): 
 
A. Agricultural Advisory Board      
 
AUTHORIZATION: Local Ordinance   
 
MISSION/FUNCTION: Administer provision of the Craven County Voluntary Agricultural  
   District Ordinance and perform other agricultural related tasks or  
   duties assigned by the Craven Count Board of Commissioners. 
 
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
9      (See qualifications) 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
1) resident of area Townships, who represent the following categories; 2) agricultural 
landowner; 3) actively and directly  involved in agricultural production on at least 10 
acres of farmland 4) special interest,  experience, or education in agriculture and/or 
rural land preservation     
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 3 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: At the call of the Chairperson        
 
COMPENSATION: No X ; Yes   Specify:       
 
CHAIR: David Parker  RECORDING SECRETARY       
 
LOCATION OF MINUTES/RECORDS: Cooperative Extension Office 
 
BYLAWS ON FILE: No X ; Yes   Last updated:      
 
ATTACHMENT(S): X  (Attachment #8.A.) 
APPLICATIONS ON FILE: None 
 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 14 

 
 
 
 
B. Firemen’s Relief Fund Board of Trustees    
 
AUTHORIZATION: NCGS 58-84-30 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To safeguard firefighters in active service and dependent   
   members of their families from financial loss resulting from   
   sickness, injury or loss of life  suffered while in performance of his  
   or her duties as a firefighter. 
    
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
5 per department    2 appointed by Board of Commissioners; 2  
      appointed by the department; 1 appointed by  
      Commissioner of Insurance 
 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
 
           
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE: As necessary 
 
TERM(S) ENDING: 
 
Pete Bradeson (See attachment) 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): (See Attachment #8.B.) 
 
APPLICATIONS ON FILE:  None  
 
Remarks: Mr. Bradeson was appointed to represent Twp.6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 15 

 
 
 
 
 
NEW REQUEST(S) FOR APPOINTMENT: 
 
C. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
 
AUTHORIZATION:  N.C.G.S. 147-33.66 
MISSION/FUNCTION: To assess the needs of juveniles in the community, evaluate the 
adequacy of resources available and develop or propose ways to address unmet needs. 
    
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:  TYPE: 
25 (maximum)    From among the following categories, or in  
      some instances, the designees of the specified 
      position: school superintendent, chief of police, 
      sheriff, district attorney, chief court counselor,  
      area mental health director, social services  
      director, county manager, substance abuse  
      professional, member of faith community,  
      county commissioner, person under the age of  
      21, juvenile defense attorney, chief district  
      court judge, member of the business   
      community, local health director, non-profit  
      representative, parks and recreation   
      representative, up to seven additional   
      members appointed by the Board of   
      Commissioners 
      
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
 
LENGTH OF TERMS:  2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:  2nd Monday of the month 12:30 p.m.        
 
TERM(S) ENDING: (See Attachment) 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Attachment #8.C. 
 
Remarks:      



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 16 

 
 
 
 
D. Fire Tax Commissioners 
 
AUTHORIZATION:   N.C.G.S. 69-25.5        
MISSION/FUNCTION: To serve in an advisory capacity as representatives of the  
   County Commissioners relative to determining the amount of fire  
   protection needed in their respective districts, assuring that district  
   residents are afforded fire protection commensurate with the   
   amount of fire tax paid, and furnishing said protection. 
 
NUMBER OF MEMBERS:   TYPE: 
30      3 per District 
                 
 
QUALIFICATIONS (Special Skills, Professional Classifications, Affiliations, Limitations, 
etc.): 
 
Must be a qualified voter of the district represented.      
 
LENGTH OF TERMS: 2 Years 
 
MEETING SCHEDULE:      
 
TERM(S) ENDING: (See Attachment) 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Attachment #8.D.        
 
 
 
Remarks:      



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 17 

 
 
 
 
 
The Chairman requested that reminders be placed on every agenda for the following 
two boards until appointments are made to satisfy the agencies’ requests for 
appointment of additional members that was made during the July 18 meeting. At the 
last meeting, information was requested as to the number needed on each of these 
boards. The information has been provided below. 
 
 
E. Nursing Home Advisory Committee 
 
Total number required: 7 
Maximum allowable: 12 
Currently has:  5 
Needs:    2 - 5 
 
F. Adult Care Home Advisory Committee 
 
Total number required: 10 
Maximum allowable: 15 
Currently has:  1 
Needs:   9 - 14 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:  The Board is requested to make nominations for vacancies 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 18 

      Presenter: Stanley Kite     
      Agenda Item No. 9     
      Board Action Required:    Yes         
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

EMERGENCY SERVICES REQUEST 
 

Emergency Services Director, Stanley Kite, will discuss with the Board 
recommendations of the EMS Advisory Board, as detailed in Attachment #9. 

 
 
 
Board Action:  Consider recommendations 
 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 19 

Presenter: Jim Hicks     
      Agenda Item No. 10     
      Board Action Required:    None     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY ATTORNEY’S REPORT:  CRAVEN COUNTY V. DARDEN LANDY 
COMPANY (Clubfoot Creek MHP). 

 
In April 2011, the Board of Commissioners was apprised of numerous violations of the 
County’s Manufactured Home Park Regulations at this property, and authorized the 
County Attorney to file a legal action to enforce the same. 
 

 

 
Board Action:  None 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 20 

      Presenter: Harold Blizzard     
      Agenda Item No. 11     
       

 
 
 
 
 
 

COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 21 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 12     

 
 
 
 
 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 22 

      Presenter:       
      Agenda Item No. 13     
       

 
 
 
 
 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
The Board will be requested to go into closed session, pursuant to NCGS 143-318.11 
(a)(6) to discuss a personnel matter.



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 23 

      Presenter: Rick Hemphill     
      Agenda Item No. W/S #1     
      Board Action Required:    Yes     

 
 
 
 
 
 

BUDGET AMENDMENT AND ORDINANCE UPDATE 
 

Finance Director, Rick Hemphill, will present the following budget amendment and 
ordinance update for the Board’s approval. 

 
Water Amendments:  Water/Castle Hayne Aquifer – Need to budget $ 750,000 from 
Water Reserve to Castle Hayne Aquifer project.  These funds are needed for the 
purchase of land, site work, utilities and contingency.  
   
Water Ordinances:     Castle Hayne Aquifer Project. 
 

 
Board Action:  A roll call vote is needed to approve budget amendment and 
ordinance update 

 



Agenda Date:    August 15, 2011   

 24 

      Presenter: Rick Hemphill     
      Agenda Item No. W/S #2     
       

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
WATER RATES 

 
 
At the meeting on Friday August 5, 2011 the Board gave tentative approval to the 
following change in water rates: 
 
 # of gallons  Rate 
 0-3000  $15.00 
 3001-6000  3.00 per thousand 
 6001-9000  3.50 per thousand 
 9001-12,000  4.00 per thousand 
 12,001-15,000 5.00 per thousand 
 Over 15,000  6.00 per thousand 
  
The purpose of this increase is to provide funds for the new treatment plant as well as to 
encourage less usage.  A recommended effective date for the change would be with 
billings occurring after October 1.  The Board will need to vote to implement these rates. 
 
A comparison of current water bills to those using the above rates is included as 
Attachment #14. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Action:   

 



TAX804P CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 
CREDIT MEMOS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 08/15/2011 Attachment #1. 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

CASTRO I NORMA 0072586 2010-0008900 116.73 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2010 

FASCIANO, RICK A 0067073 2011-0090085 24.32 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2011 

HTUN, YE WIN 0081161 2010-0025547 79.14 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2010 

JONES, JOSEPH B 0062752 2010-0027807 49.38 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 6269680 

VILLEGAS, MAURO FLORES 0077553 2010-0053164 48.96 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 75200 

VILLEGAS, MAURO FLORES 0077553 2009-0058172 57.17 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 75200 

WALLACE, CHARLIE R 0050405 2007-0090979 243.75 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 7510570 

WIN, ZAW A 0072082 2009-0062574 60.07 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2009 

WIN, ZAW A 0072082 2010-0057164 49.83 
DID NOT OWN 1/1/2010 

9 -CREDIT MEMO(S} 729.35 



TAXSOSP CRAVEN COUNTY PAGE 1 
REFUNDS SUBJECT TO BOARD APPROVAL ON 08/15/2011 

TAXPAYER NAME ACCT#/TICKET# AMOUNT 

FIRST CITIZENS BANK & TRUST CO 0017328 2009-0018712 71.80 
BUS. LOCATED ON BOARD CHERRY POINT 

FIRST CITIZENS BANK & TRUST CO 0017328 2010-0017120 53.16 
BUS LOCATED ON BOARD CHERRY POINT 

VILLEGAS, MAURO FLORES 0077553 2oos-oon9o9 49.82 
DOUBLE BILLED-SEE ACCT 75200 

3 -REFUND(S) 174.78 



Craven Area Rural Transit System 

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 
Director - Phyllis Toler 

P.O. Box 13605  -  2822 Neuse Blvd. 

New Bern, North Carolina 28561 

Phone: 252-636-4917  -  Fax: 252-636-4919 

1-800-735-2962 TDD/TTY                                  

Email: carts@cravencounty.com 

 

 

 

 
Printed on recycled paper 

From the desk of 

Phyllis Toler 

 Director 

August 15, 2011 

 

 

 

 

To: Craven County Board of Commissioners 

 Harold Blizzard, Craven County Manager 

 Jack Veit, Assistant Craven County Manager 

 

From: Phyllis Toler, CARTS Director 

 

Ref: Request to set FY 2012 ROAP (Rural Operating Assistant Program) Grant Public Hearing 

 

As part of the process to apply for FY 2012 ROAP Grant funding, Craven County/CARTS is 

requesting to set a Public Hearing on Tuesday, September 6, 2011 at the Craven County 

Commissioner meeting.  Public Hearing Notice to be advertised to the general public.     

 

FY 2012 ROAP Grant funding is used to provide transportation through CARTS for the residence of 

Craven County.  Grant includes funding for: EDTAP (Elderly Disabled Transportation Program, 

EMPL (Employment), and RGP (Rural General Public) transportation services.   

 

Thank you for your assistance with this grant package. 

 

  

 

mailto:carts@cravencounty.com


HOLLAND CONSULTING PLANNERS, INC.
FINAL BID TABULATION FORM

PROJECT: CRAVEN CO FY08 CDBG-CR ADDITIONAL FUNDING BID OPENING DATE: JULY 28, 2011

PRELIMINARY BID SUMMARY (RA-7) REVIEWED/TABULATED BY:  (SEE ATTACHMENT)

CASE
FILE # OCCUPANT ADDRESS

ACTUAL BID
(TABULATED) CONTRACTOR

RECOMMENDED
AWARD (T) COMMENTS

17
Hicksy Green 310 Kennedy Dr

New Bern NC

$79,900 D Griffin Builders D & B is low bidder

$68,207 Billy Earp & Son

$66,875 United Builders

$69,280 Holland Construction

$68,300 Clint Blanton Construction

$88,263 Southern Reconstruction

$63,500 D & B Builders T

$73,800 B & B Construction

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

RA.08 April 2002



dbj 

Attachment #5. 

2012 
HOLIDAY SCHEDULE 

NEW YEAR'S DAY 
Monday, January 2, 2012 

MARTIN LUTHER KING, JR.'S BIRTHDAY 
Monday,January16,2012 

GOOD FRIDAY 
Friday, April6, 2012 

MEMORIAL DAY 
Monday, May 28, 2012 

INDEPENDENCE DAY 
Wednesday, July 4, 2012 

LABOR DAY 
Monday, September 3, 2012 

VETERANS' DAY 
Monday, November 12, 2012 

THANKSGIVING 
Thursday, November 22, 2012 

Friday, November 23,2012 

CHRISTMAS 
Monday, December 24, 2012 
Tuesday, December 25, 2012 

Wednesday, December 26,2012 

Approved by the Craven County Board of Commissioners at their regularly 
scheduled meeting on August 15,2011. 

Joan M. Harrell 
Human Resources Oirector 



NORTH CAROLINA 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
,o/th<' COURTS 

March 1, 2011 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Judicial Branch of Government 

FROM: John W. Smith, Director 

SUBJECT: Calendar Year 2012 Holiday Schedule 

Office of the Director 

Judge John W. Smith 
Dlrecto1 

PO Box 2448, Rale1gh, NC 27602 
T 919 890-1391 F 919 890·1915 

The 2012 holiday schedule for the Judicial Branch of Government is the same for the Executive Branch, 
allowing for twelve holidays. 

Holiday Observance Date Day of Week 

New Year's Day 
Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday 
Good Friday 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Veterans Day 
Thanksgiving Day 
Christmas 

January 2, 2012 
January 16, 2012 
April 6, 2012 
May 28,2012 
July 4, 2012 
September 3, 2012 
November 12, 2012 
November 22 & 23, 2012 
December 24, 25, 26, 2012 

Monday 
Monday 
Friday 
Monday 
Wednesday 
Monday 
Monday 
Thursday & Friday 
Monday, Tuesday, & Wednesday 

Please remember that any variations in this schedule could result in overtime and premium pay costs, for 
which funds have not been budgeted. For this reason, any adjustment or change in this holiday schedule 
must be approved in advance by me. After receiving such approval, should court be held on a scheduled 
holiday requiring some of your employees to work, the employees will be granted an alternate day off, plus 
holiday premium pay. Please contact the AOC Human Resources Division if this occurs to determine who is 
eligible for holiday premium pay, and the procedures necessary to make appropriate payments. 

North Carolina Judicial Center, 901 Corporate Center Drive. Raleigh. NC 27607 



  
 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION OPPOSING FERRY FEES 
 
WHEREAS, Pamlico County is an isolated rural county with limited access to 

neighboring jurisdictions and is surrounded by water on the eastern and southern sides; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Craven, Pamlico and Carteret Counties have, over the years, forged 

a collaborative relationship in many matters of local government, regional concern and 
issues of importance to their respective citizenry; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cherry Branch to Minnesott Beach Ferry connection is important 

for providing transportation to and from certain parts of Carteret, Craven, and Pamlico 
Counties; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 31.3 of House Bill 200, ratified in the 2011-2012 session of 

the North Carolina General Assembly, legislates a toll for all ferry routes, excepting the 
Hatteras Island to Ocracoke and Knotts Island routes; and 

 
WHEREAS, representatives of the state legislature have indicated that a toll of 

$10 per car, one way, is proposed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Cherry Branch to Minnesott Beach branch of the ferry system is 

of regional importance by providing transportation for the citizens of the tri-county area, 
to local businesses, community colleges, and especially to U.S. Marine Corp Air Station 
Cherry Point; and 

 
WHEREAS, any additional transportation costs would undoubtedly inhibit the 

growth of tourism, which is a major sector in sustaining the local and regional 
economies; and 

 
WHEREAS, a $10 fee as proposed would deter use of the ferry and furthermore, 

the expected benefits as proposed in the State budget would be offset by the 
administrative costs associated with collecting and managing revenues from the fees; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, with the current cost of living challenges faced by our citizens, such 

additional transportation costs would hinder economic recovery in the area. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE  BE IT RESOLVED, that the Craven County Board of 

Commissioners stands with Pamlico County in opposition to the collection of any toll for 
use of the Cherry Branch to Minnesott Beach Ferry and urges legislators to exempt this 
route from any tolls. 

 
 Adopted  this 15th day of August 2011. 
 
             
Steve Tyson, Chairman    Gwendolyn M. Bryan 
Craven County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 



Attachment #7. 

CRAVEN COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 
Board of Health Fee Approval 

Recommendation 

Clinic: 
See Below 

Fee Establishment Recommended: 
Procedure CodeiOascrlptlon 
l1300FP/Paragard- IUD 
n302FP/Mirena- IUD 

Medicaid Bate 
$386.89 
$477.20 

We are requesting the above rates to be effective for July 1, 2011. 

Reason for Increase: 
# New services being offered 

Proposed Rate 
$387.00 
$478.00 



Graven County Agricultural Advisory Board 
302 Industrial Drive 
New Bern, North Carolina 28562 
PhOne: 252-637-3567 Ext 3 
Fax: 252-514-2009 

Patrick Prichard 
136 Murray Davis Road ,... 
Havelock, NC 28532 

July 7, 2011 

Dear Patrick, 

Attachment #B.A. 

Due to a lack of participation at meetings and no communication with board members, 
the Craven County Agricultural Advisory Board (CCAAB) is seeking a replacement for 
your position. The board will soon begin outlining a formal Farmland Preservation Plan 
for Craven County. such, we need a strong commitment from board members to 
attend and participate. 

We are thankful for your early efforts and commitment in helping establish this board, 
by-laws and enrollment of lands into V AD programs. If circumstances afford greater 
flexibility in your schedule in the future, please consider service at that time. 

~~ 
David Parker 
Chairman, Craven County Agricultural Advisory Board 

Cc: Steve Tyson, Chairman, Craven County Board of Commissioners 
Harold Blizzard, County Manager 
Tom Glasgow, Extension CED 



. 1 

RG042009 APPROVED 

Township 3, Cove City-West Dale DaV'.'SOn 
Wintergreen Rd, Dover, 393 Prentiss Riggs Rd 
Ft. Barnwell Cove City, NC 28523 

633-6932 

Township 5,Havelock, 
Adams Creek 

Township 6, Hwy 70 E, 
Riverdale 

Township 7,James City 

Township 8, New Bern, 
Trent Woods 

Township 9, Jasper, 
Cove City-East 

Craven County Soil & 
Water Appointment 

Patrick Pritchard 
136 Murray Davis Rd. 
Havelock, NC 28532 
444-6101 

John T. "Curly" Brazelton 
1000 Sunset Drive 
Havelock, NC 28532 
447-5272 

Jimmy Arthur 
1109 Brices Creek Rd 
New Bern, NC 28562 
637-5960 

Glenn Ipock 
550 Ipock Lane 
New Bern, NC 28562 
638-6789 

David Parker 
2755Hwy 55W 
New Bern, NC 28562 
633-5326 

Dietrich Kilpatrick 
10900 Hwy 55 N 
Dover,NC 28526 
527-4051 

Medium Scale Field Crop 
& Tobacco Production 

?mall Field Crop Prod. 

Small Farrner- Animals 

Field Crop &Animal (cattle) 
Production 

Medium Scale Field Crop 
Prod. &Animals (cattle) 

Large Scale Field Crop & 
Tobacco Production 

Large Scale Field Crop Prod. 

COUNTY MANAGER'S REPORT 

County Manager, Harold Blizzard, reported on a request received by the Sheriff's 
Department to purchase a transport vehicle to transport inmates from Clarks Road to the 
Courthouse, and authorization to apply for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grand to fund the purchase of the 2009 Chevrolet 550 Prisoner Transport 
Vehicle. The Sheriff requested scheduling of a public hearing on the grant application, as 
required by federal law. He stated that the eligible amount of the grant is $81,595. The 
vehicle cost is $89,997, with remaining balance of cost to come from the jail project fund. 
Commissioner Allen moved to set a public hearing for 7:00 p.m. on May 4 and to 
autl1orize the grant application, seconded by Commissioner Morris and u11animously 
carried. 

COMMISSIONERS' REPORTS 

Commissioner Sisk congratulated Havelock on recognitions for military personnel. She 
also commented on the beauty of Craven County in springtime. 

Commissioner Morris congratulated the City of New Bern for receipt of an award for 
electrical services. He solicited the public's support for influencing several bills before 
the General Assembly: 1) secondary roads responsibility shifted to counties; and 2) ABC 
Board authority shifted to the state. He compared Craven County's legislative 
representation to that oflarger counties, and stated that in order to gain any leverage, it 
would be necessary to contact all legislators, not just Craven County's legislative 
delegation. He announced a golf tournament taking place at River Bend on May 23 to 
benefit the West Craven High School Athletic Association. 

6 



Fw: Firemen Relief Fund Trustee 
Gwen Bryan to: Alison Newcombe 

From: Gwen Bryan/CravenCounty 

To: Alison Newcombe/CravenCounty@CravenCounty 

Attachment #8.B. 

Attachment #B.B. 

08/1112011 11:30 AM 

E-mail sent to and from this address is subject to the North carolina Public Records laws and may be 
disclosed to third parties. 

~~--- ----~---~------- - -

Patti McDaniel !lji 9\IVE?I1 :·.Mr EE?!e f3radeso11 is .. aiTE?CiciY ()11 this 07l15/201J 11:35:32 AM 

From: Patti McDaniei/CravenCounty 
To: Gwen Bryan/CtavenCounty@CravenCounty 
Date: 07/15/201111:35AM 

Re: Firemen Relief Fund Trustee 

Hi Gwen: 

Mr Pete Bradeson is already on this fund appointed by the Department of Insurance Commissioner. They 
have 5 members on this board Two (2) members are appointed by the Fire Department, Two (2) members 
appointed by the County Commissioners and One (1) appointment by the NC Department of Insurance 
Commissioner, so I think the County Commissioners will need to appoint someone else 
in his place. 1 have emailed the Chief to see if he had any recommendations. What will be our next step. 

Patti McDaniel 
Administrative Assistant/EMS 
Craven County Emergency Services 
252-636-6608 
pmcdaniel@cravencountync.gov 



Board of Commissioners 
Steve Tyson, Chairman 
lee Kyle Allen, Vice Chairman 
Scott C. Dacey 
Thomas F. Mark 
Theron McCabe 
Johnnie Sampson, Jr. 
Jefferey S. Taylor 

Administrative Staff 
Harold Blizzard, County Manager 
jack Veit, Assistant Manager 
Gwendolyn M. Bryan, Clerk to the Board 
Rick Hemphill, Finance Director 
joan Harrell, Human Resources Director 

MEMORANDUM: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Gwen Bryan, Clerk to the Board 

Sherry Riggs, JCPC Chairperso~ 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Appointments 

August 8, 2011 

Administration Building 
406 Craven Street 

New Bern, NC 28560 
Fax 252-637-0526 

manager@cravencounty.com 

Commissioners 252-636-6601 
Manager 252-636-6600 
Finance 252-636-6603 

Human Resources 252-636-6602 

Following is a list of Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) members whose appointments 
expired on June 30, 2011. Also shown is the area in which they represent on the Council. The 
Council is requesting the following be re-appointed for a two-year term: 

Richard Bowers 
lillie Hayes 
Robert Keeter 
Jennifer Knight 
Scott Harrelson 
Mary Mallard 
Carol Mattocks 
Rudy Riggs 
Sherry Riggs 
Jackie Smith 
Cheryl Spencer 
Hollyanne Trombley 
Nancy Wells 

At-Large 
At-Large 
At-Large 
Business Representative 
Health Director 
Chief Court Counselor 
At-Large 
Sheriff/Designee 
County Manager/Designee 
District Attorney /Designee 
Chief District Court Judge/Designee 
Department of Social Services 
Mental Health Representative 

We have two additional vacancies to fill, the Chief of Police and a representative from the faith 
community. These will be presented for consideration as they become available. 



Township Six Fire Department 

PO Box 688 

Havelock, NC 28532 

Craven County Fire Marshall 

406 Craven Street 

New Bern, NC 28560 

From: Township Six Fire Department 

To: Fire Marshall Stanley Kite 

Subject: Fire Tax Commissioner 

In regards to the passing of former Fire Tax Commissioner Clarence Edwards, we 

have a recommendation to fill this position . 

Harvey R. Hurst 

213 E. Palmer Drive 

New Bern, NC 28560 

Phone: 447-2351 



One of our members has been in touch with this gentleman and he said he would 

be glad to do the job. 

We had a second recommendation but upon talking to that gentleman he said he 

would have to decline as he does not have the time due to his work load. 

If you need any more information, please let us know. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

))/{rj/1 t'(J; it:f<:fLtti>cJ 1'-/ 
Margaret Bradeson 

President 



 

 

 

 

Memorandum 

 

 

TO:  Mr. Harold Blizzard, Craven County Manager 

 

FROM: Stanley Kite, Emergency Services Director 

 

SUBJ:  Commissioner's Agenda 

 

DATE:  August 9, 2011 

 

RE:  EMS Advisory Council 

 

 

I need to report to the Commissioners the results of the Craven County EMS Advisory 

Council recommendations for Township 7 EMS Application for Convalescent Service. 

 

As you know on March 29, 2011 I had received an opinion from Mr. Jimmy Hicks, 

County Attorney that indicated he felt Number 7 Township EMS would need to apply for 

a franchise in order to continue convalescent services in Craven County.  As a result of 

this opinion we had sent them a letter advising them to stop providing this type service 

until they were approved to do so in accordance with the Craven County Ambulance 

Ordinance. 

 

An application was submitted and Emergency Services processed the application as 

outlined in the County Ambulance ordinance and presented the application to the Craven 

County EMS Advisory Council July 20, 2011.  The EMS Advisory Council recommends 

to the Board of Commissioners to approve the application and grant a franchise pending 

an opening.  The Ambulance Ordinance limits the number of Private Ambulance Services 

providing Convalescent Services to 4.  Currently we have Johnston Ambulance Service, 

Coastline Medical Transports, Tarheel Ambulance Service, Med 1 Ambulance Service 

operating with approved Franchises and Coastal Medical Transports has been approved 

by the Commissioners and are awaiting an opening.   

 

In the event the Craven County Commissioners approve the EMS Advisory Council 

recommendations this would designate Township 7 EMS as approved but waiting an 

available opening behind Coastal Medical Transports for a Convalescent Franchise. 

 



 

 

  

EMS Information: 

 

Emergency and Non Emergency Franchise awards were defined based on the Craven 

County Ambulance Franchise Ordinance that was adopted in January 1987.  At the time 

of the original adoption of the Ambulance Ordinance all existing Providers in Craven 

County were recognized and Franchised to Provide Emergency and Non Emergency 

Transportation.  The existing EMS Providers were Craven Regional Medical Center, 

Bridgeton EMS, Havelock Public Safety, Vanceboro Rescue, Cove City Rescue and Ft. 

Barnwell Rescue.  It should be noted there were only two type franchises issued at this 

time by Craven County. Emergency Franchises were considered transporting emergency 

type patients and Non Emergency Franchises was for any patients not considered 

emergency patients.  This seemed to be suitable for several years until private ambulance 

companies approached the County to conduct non emergency transportation and 

considered this service as convalescent.  The first private company (East Coast 

Convalescent operated by Mrs. Francis Turnage was issued a Franchise to operate non 

emergency transportation.  As the increased need for this type of service grew it became a 

problem for the 911 providers as they were very often being committed to taking patients 

to Dr. Visits and handling discharges from the hospital and not being available for 911 

calls.  Craven County was then approached by Mr. Brian Conner owner of Convalescent 

Transports Inc. to operate in Craven County.  Originally the EMS Council felt one 

Private Company was enough and recommended not to issue a Franchise to the 

Commissioners however the Commissioners returned the issue to the EMS Council and 

wanted further review of the application.  The County later issued a Non Emergency 

Franchise to Convalescent Transports Inc.  

 

In the early 1992 period it was determined there was a need for Township 7 EMS in the 

Township 7 area that was being served by Bridgeton due to the old US 17 Bridge causing 

extreme delays in response times and the accelerated population growth in Township 7.  

Township 7 EMS was granted a Franchise for Emergency Transportation as this was the 

request on their application and this is when the Township 7 region was separated from 

the existing Bridgeton EMS district. 

 

As the Health Care in the area exploded in the mid 90's so did the need for Ambulance 

Transportation Services.  Again the 911 providers were being tasked to take non 

emergency scheduled calls and this was being a problem for 911 calls when ambulances 

were not available.  Johnston Ambulance Service applied for a application and the EMS 

Advisory Council reviewed the situation and recommended to the County Commissioners 

to  issue a Franchise for Emergency and Non Emergency to Johnston Ambulance Service 

so it could not only do convalescent type service but could also back up the 911 services. 



 

 

The EMS Council also recommended limiting the number of private ambulance 

companies to 4 based on the recommendation of the existing private owner / operators.  

The consensus expressed in this discussion was so Craven County could have additional 

services in the County in addition to the existing non profit ambulance companies but yet 

not have too many companies that would dilute the customer base that could cause 

financial challenges that would cause these private businesses to fail.  The Ambulance 

Ordinance was amended be the County Commissioners to restrict the number of private 

services to 4. 

 

Craven County currently has Johnston Ambulance Service, Coastline Care, Med 1 

Transports and Tarheel Ambulance Service operating with Franchises and we have 

approved Coastal Medical Transports to be the next provider pending an opening in the 4 

positions limited by the ordinance. 

 

A measurement in the number of services needed in the County has been based solely on 

the issues or concerns of the services not being available from clinics, hospitals and 

citizens.  Since we have been maintaining the 4 private providers in the EMS System 

some of the existing providers have grown in the size of their operation but we are not 

receiving any complaints of not having available ambulance services when needed for 

this type service.  

 

Township 7 EMS started in October of 2010 providing the Convalescent transportation in 

areas all across Craven and areas outside Craven County.  The Emergency Services 

Director asked the County Attorney to review this issue and the decision was made an 

additional Franchise would be required.  A letter was sent to the Provider asking them to 

discontinue the Service and apply for a Franchise as outlined in the Ambulance 

Ordinance.  

 

NOTE:  Staff feels the Ambulance Services that are currently contracted and subsidized 

with their annual operational budget to provide 911 services should not be committed to 

non emergency services when there are ample providers that are not subsidized by the 

County to Provide this service. 

 

    

 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
When the Board was discussing changing the rates for users with large consumption, there was no intent to adjust the rates for high commercial users, only 
residential.  However, since the high usage increase was combined with an overall adjustment to fund the plant it would seem logical that the commercial rates 
should be adjusted for the costs of the new plant.  That amount was roughly 11%.  We would recommend that commercial rates increase as follows: 
 
 # of gallons  Current rate  Proposed rate  % incr in aver bill Curr Aver Bill  New Aver Bill 
 0-3000    20.00   22.00   10.00%   20.00   22.00 
 3001-6000   2.75   3.00   9.85%   23.66   25.99    
 6001-9000   3.00   3.50   10.65%   31.91   35.31 
 9001-12000   3.25   3.50   10.97%   42.21   46.84 
 12001-15000   3.25   3.50   11.11%   51.32   57.02 
 Over 15000   3.25   3.75   13.86%   195.38   222.46  
 
This works out to an overall average increase of 11.54%  
 

 


	Agenda20110815
	Attachment #1
	Attachment #2 CARTS PH
	Attachment #3.A
	Attachment #5
	Attachment #6 Ferry Resolution
	Attachment #7
	Attachment #8.A
	Attachment #8.B
	Attachment #8.C
	Attachment #8.D
	Attachment #9
	Attachment #14 water rates

